Public Document Pack

Rutland County Council
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP.
Telephone 01572 722577 Facsimile 01572 758307 DX28340 Oakham

Ladies and Gentlemen,
A meeting of the PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE will be held in the
Council Chamber, Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP on Tuesday, 3rd July,
2018 commencing at 7.00 pm when it is hoped you will be able to attend.
Yours faithfully

Helen Briggs
Chief Executive
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record,
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at www.rutland.gov.uk/mycouncil/have-your-say/
AGENDA
1)

APOLOGIES

2)

MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the Planning and Licensing Committee held on 5
June 2018 (previously circulated).

3)

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
In accordance with the Regulations, Members are invited to declare any
disclosable interests under the Code of Conduct and the nature of those
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.

4)

PETITIONS, DEPUTATIONS AND QUESTIONS
To receive any petitions, deputations and questions from members of the
Public in accordance with the provisions of Procedure Rule 93.
Any petitions, deputations and questions that have been submitted with prior

formal notice will take precedence over questions submitted at short notice.
Any questions that are not considered within the time limit shall receive a
written response after the meeting and be the subject of a report to the next
meeting.
---oOo--Requests to speak on planning applications will also be subject to the RCC
Public Speaking Rules.
---oOo--The total time allowed for this item shall be 30 minutes.

5)

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
To receive Report No. 118/2018 from the Strategic Director for Places.
(Pages 3 - 12)

6)

APPEALS REPORT
To receive Report No. 119/2018 from the Strategic Director for Places.
(Pages 13 - 16)

7)

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any other urgent business approved in writing by the Chief
Executive and Chairman of the Committee.
---oOo---

DISTRIBUTION
MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE:
Mr E Baines (Chairman)
Mr A Stewart (Vice-Chair)
Ms R Burkitt
Mr B Callaghan
Mr G Conde
Mr W Cross
Mr R Gale
Mr A Mann
Mr M Oxley
Mr A Walters
OTHER MEMBERS FOR INFORMATION

Agenda Item 5

REPORT NO: 118/2018

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
03rd JULY 2018
PLANNING APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE
PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACES
(ENVIRONMENT, PLANNING AND TRANSPORT)

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Rutland County Council
Planning & Licensing Committee – 3rd July 2018
Index of Committee Items
Item

Application No

Applicant, Location & Description Recommendation

1

2018/0366/RG3

Rutland County Council, Oakham
Enterprise Park, Ashwell Road,
Oakham, Rutland.
Reserved Matters application for the
erection of B2/B8 building
with associated service yard,
parking, road way and
landscaping. (REG 3)

Appeals Report

Approval

Page
7

13

5

This page is intentionally left blank

2018/0366/RG3

Rutland County Council
Catmose,
Oakham,
Rutland
LE15 6HP
© Crown copyright and database rights [2013]
Ordnance Survey [100018056]

7

Application:
Proposal:

2018/0366/RG3
ITEM 1
Reserved Matters application for the erection of B2/B8 building
with associated service yard, parking, road way and
landscaping. (REG 3)
Address:
Oakham Enterprise Park, Ashwell Road, Oakham, Rutland
Applicant:
Rutland County
Parish
Burley
Council
Agent:
Malcolm FoulkesWard
Exton
Arnold, Corporate
Architecture
Reason for presenting to Committee:
RCC application
Date of Committee:
3 July 2018

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This is a reserved matters application for 2 industrial units. Objections have been
received on the grounds of inadequate access and materials. The access is not a
reserved matter and the materials are considered appropriate for the location, screened
from the road.

RECOMMENDATION
APPROVAL, subject to the following condition:
The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete accordance
with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 4556-G-18-007A, 4556-G-18-008A,
4556-G-18-009A, 4556-G-18-004A, 4556-G-18-003A and 4556-G-18-005A (plus landscape
drawing still awaited)
Reason - For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Site & Surroundings
1.

The site is in the inner area of OEP where the derelict prison house blocks were
demolished. They are set back approximately 45 metres from the Ashwell Road, behind
a boundary hedge and screen security fencing. There is an open parking area and an
internal service road behind the Ashwell Road boundary

2.

There are 3 trees along the front edge of the site adjacent to the service road.

Proposal
3.

The proposal is for the erection of 2 industrial units, each 929 square metres. It includes
part of a new internal estate road to allow easier access around the internal area of the
site, especially for HGV’s. It is a Regulation 31 application for development by the Local
Authority.

4.

The units would be 8 metres to the eaves and 9.8 metres to the ridge. It is intended that
the units would provide flexible accommodation, i.e. they could be 2 units or split into 4
or more depending on demand.

5.

Materials are metal cladding, Goosewing Grey and Merlin Grey on the walls. Roof is
specified as Goosewing but the applicant has been asked to use a darker colour on the
roof.

1

Town & Country Planning General Regulations 1992.

8

6.

34 parking spaces would be provided within the site. There are large parking areas to
the south and west of the site within OEP.

7.

The proposal involves removing the 3 trees along the site frontage to allow for the
positioning of the building and the wider access road. Large concrete block foundations
from the old house blocks are a constraint to siting.

8.

A site layout is attached as an Appendix.

Relevant Planning History
Application
2013/0192

Description
Proposed demolition of identified buildings,
Change of Use of land and buildings from
former Prison (Sui Generis Use) to B1
(Business), B2 (General Industry including
manufacturing), B8 (Storage and Distribution),
D1 (Non residential Education and Training
Centres), D2 (Assembly, Leisure and
Community Use) and part Outline for Winter
Storage Depot (Sui Generis) and B1, B2, B8
Uses identified development zones within the
site.

Decision
Approved
10 May
2013.

Planning Guidance and Policy
National Planning Policy Framework
Supports sustainable development.
Building a strong competitive economy
Supports a prosperous rural economy
The Rutland Core Strategy (2011)
CS6 – Re-use of redundant prisons
CS13 – Employment & Economic Development
CS19 – Promoting good design
Site Allocations and Policies DPD (2014)
SP7 – Non-residential development in the countryside
SP15 – Design & Amenity
Supplementary Planning Document
Ashwell Business Park – January 2013
This was a general document adopted prior to the Council acquiring the site. Relevant extracts
are:


The design and redevelopment of the site for any significant alterations to existing and for
new buildings should comply with policy CS19 in the adopted Core Strategy, which sets out
the Council’s policy on the design of developments.

9




The site should be developed to the highest possible standards with consideration given to
making the most efficient use of land, design, layout, materials, landscaping and the
disposition of uses.
The layout for redevelopment of the site will take account of the orientation of existing
buildings and should include a mixture of unit sizes to provide premises to meet a wide
range of user need. Plots should be of a sufficient size to adequately accommodate car
parking, to the Council’s parking standards, servicing requirements and landscaping.

Consultations
9.

Ashwell Parish Council
This metal clad, instead of brick, construction will be highly visible from the Oakham
Road, making considerable change to the street scene in this region of Langham. The 5
trees shown on the plan will not be enough to screen the building proposed.

Neighbour Representations
10.

Unit 23C OEP has objected on the following grounds (in summary):





Traffic into/out of OEP is required to swerve round a gap in the fence which partially
blocks the concrete access road.
The road is in poor condition and no road markings or signage as to who has right of
way.
Object unless the access road is properly opened up and constructed so there is two
way traffic.
Object to the removal of existing mature trees along the access road to the west of the
new units, when there is no need to do so and as they are some of the few positive
features within OEP.

Planning Assessment
11.

As an application for approval of reserved matters, the issues to be considered are
limited as the 2013 outline is the principal permission. The reserved matters are layout,
design, landscaping and appearance so these are the issues that can be considered.
Layout

12.

The 2 units are placed logically facing onto the existing internal access road which will
be widened. They have been moved forward to avoid huge concrete foundation blocks
which remain in the ground from the former house blocks. This also leaves space for a
future application on the remaining vacant land to the rear.
Design/appearance

13.

The design is relatively utilitarian but is on an industrial estate and in a location
reasonably well screened from public view. It is not an unusual design to see in such a
location and an appeal against a refusal on this ground would probably be successful.
Landscaping

14.

There is limited scope for landscaping on the site. The trees across the frontage are to
be removed. One is identified in an Arboricultural report to be diseased. The others are
not worthy of a Tree Preservation order so on that basis their loss cannot be resisted.
There is scope for replacement planting elsewhere within OEP and an update will be
made at the meeting.

10

Other issues
15.

Access has been raised by an objector, however access to the site was fixed as a full
approval in the 2013 application. This does not form part of this reserved matters
application. The applicant has indicated that improvements will be made to the main
entrance gate which mostly involves a single lane entry and exit.

11

APPENDIX 1

12

Agenda Item 6

REPORT NO: 119/2018

PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE
3rd July 2018

APPEALS
Report of the Strategic Director for Places
Strategic Aim:

Ensuring the impact of development is managed

Exempt Information

No.

Cabinet Member Responsible:

Councillor Nick Begy - Deputy Leader; Portfolio Holder
for Planning Policy & Planning Operations, Highways
& Transportation and Communications

Contact Officer(s): Steve Ingram, Strategic Director for
Places (Environment, Planning &
Transport and Highways)
Sylvia Bland, Development Control
Manager
Ward Councillors

Tel: 01572 758868
singram@rutland.gov.uk
Tel: 01572 720950
sbland@rutland.gov.uk

All
DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Committee notes the contents of this report
1.

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT
1.1. This report lists for Members’ information the appeals received since the last
meeting of the Planning & Licensing Committee and summarises the decisions
made.

2.

APPEALS LODGED SINCE LAST MEETING
2.1

APP/TPO/A2470/6756 – Mr Andrew Cross – 2018/0015/PTA
15 Foxfield Way, Oakham
Fell 6 no. Lime trees. Reduce height of 1 no. Sycamore tree by 7 - 8 metres
and re-shape sides by up to 1 metre.
Delegated Decision – refused due to detrimental impact the proposed
works would have on the treescape and amenity of the area.

13

3.

2.2

APP/A2470/W/17/3190658 – Towngate Developments Ltd –
2017/0245/FUL
Land to the South East of 4 Redmiles Lane, Ketton
Erection of a two storey dwelling and extension to existing garage
Committee Decision – refused due to the proposed dwelling being out
of keeping with the immediate area, creating over-dominant impact on
Ketton Conservation Area and setting of adjacent listed building.

2.3

APP/A2470/D/18/3202516 – Mr Jeremy Clarke – 2017/1233/FUL
4 Chapel Lane, Ketton
A garden studio outbuilding as ancillary space to main house and
alterations to existing garden
Delegated Decision – refused due to having a detrimental impact on
the setting of the neighbouring listed building and failing to preserve
or enhance the character and appearance of the Ketton Conservation
Area.

2.4

APP/A2470/D/18/3199732 – Mr Chris Devlin – 2017/1098/FUL
67 High Street, Ketton
Construction of a natural oak framed gazebo
Delegated Decision – Proposed gazebo would result in an
unacceptable impact on the residential amenity of adjoining property.

DECISIONS
3.1

APP/A2470/D/18/3194014 – Mr & Mrs Underwood – 2017/0793/FUL
Walton House, 5 Melton Road, Whissendine
Demolish existing single storey external store side elevation, re-furbish
existing double garage into part of dwelling and single storey pitched roof
extension. Add glazed canopy covered areas. Re-roof existing house. New
double garage two-storey with room over
Appeal Allowed – 31 May 2018

3.2

APP/A2470/W/18/3194939 – Mr R Beaver – 2017/0864/FUL
The Bungalows, 1 Stamford Road, Essendine
New dwelling to replace existing
Appeal Dismissed – 04 June 2018
Application for Costs Refused – 04 June 2018

3.3

APP/A2470/W/17/3189809 – Mr Anthony Woolley – 2017/0436/FUL
Land at Uppingham Road, Preston
Change of use from horticultural to glamping / camping. Construction of No.
6 Safari Tents for holiday use and Reception and the creation of a car
parking area including footpaths and a drive
Appeal Dismissed – 04 June 2018

3.4

APP/A2470/W/18/3196783 – Mr Duncan Furey – 2017/0253/FUL
12 Chapel Lane, Barrowden
Erection of two storey house with garage
Appeal Dismissed – 18 June 2018

14

4

5.

APPEALS AGAINST ENFORCEMENTS LODGED SINCE LAST MEETING
4.1

APP/A2470/C/17/3190600 – Towngate Developments Ltd –
2016/0145/CMP
Land to the South East of 4 Redmiles Lane, Ketton
Construction of building that has not been built in accordance with the
relevant Planning Permission reference number 2014/0747/FUL

4.2

APP/A2470/C/18/3197181 – Mrs Kay Sarsby – 2017/0088/CMP
Red Oak, Seaton Road, Morcott
Erection of 1.8 metre high fencing and gates, the height of which is more
than one metre above ground level adjacent to a highway.

ENFORCEMENT DECISIONS
5.1

6.

CONSULTATION
6.1

7.

As this is only a report for noting it has not needed to address authority,
powers and duties.

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT
10.1

11.

None

LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS
9.1

10.

Alternatives have not been considered as this is an information report

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1

9.

None

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
7.1

8.

None

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed for the
following reason; because there are no relevant service, policy or
organisational changes being proposed.

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are no such implications.

12.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS
12.1

There are no such implications

15

13.

CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE
RECOMMENDATIONS
13.1 This report gives details of decisions received since the last meeting for
noting.

14.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
14.1 There are no such implications

15.

APPENDICES
15.1

None

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.

16

